
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Licensing Sub-Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Tuesday 14 February 2023 at 6.30 pm 
 

This meeting will be held remotely 
 

Watch the meeting live: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham  
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration: Opposition: 

Councillor Mercy Umeh (Chair) 
Councillor Florian Chevoppe-Verdier 
 

Councillor Dominic Stanton 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Charles Francis 

Committee Co-ordinator 
Governance and Scrutiny 

 Tel: 07776 672945 
E-mail: Charles.Francis@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 

Public Notice 
 
This meeting will be held remotely. Members of the press and public can watch the 
meeting live on YouTube: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham  
 
Speaking at Licensing meetings is restricted to those who have submitted a 
representation and registered to speak. 
 
 

Date Issued: 03 February 2023 

https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham


London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

Licensing Sub-Committee Agenda 
14 February 2023 

 
 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or 
any other significant interest which they consider should be declared in 
the public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the 
nature of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that 
item or as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
At meetings where members of the public are allowed to be in 
attendance and speak, any Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary 
interest or other significant interest may also make representations, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter. The Councillor 
must then withdraw immediately from the meeting before the matter is 
discussed and any vote taken.  
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   PAPA JOHNS PIZZA, 63 WALHAM GROVE, LONDON SW6 1QR. 
 

3 - 59 



 

 
 

Contents         Page 
  
 
1. THE APPLICATION       4 

1.1. Current hours of Operation                                              4 

1.2. Application Requested                                     4-5  

1.3. Applicants Operating Schedule     5    

2. BACKGROUND        5 

3. CONSULTATION        5 

3.1      Relevant Representations      5 

4. OTHER INFORMATION       5 

4.1  Enforcement History      5 

4.2      Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)    6 

5.  POLICY CONSIDERATIONS     6-11 

6.        DETERMINATION                 11 

 

APPENDICES 
  
Copy of current licence and plan 12-17 
 
Copy of application form 18-28 
 
Relevant correspondence with the Police 29-33 
 
Map showing location of premises and neighbouring premises 34-36 
 
Copy of objection from Cllr Coleman 37 
 
Copy of objections from local residents 38-59 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

 1. THE APPLICATION  
 
On 4 November 2022, DFSI M25 LTD (“the applicant”) submitted an application to vary 
their premises licence in respect of the premises known as Papa Johns Pizza, 63 Walham 
Grove London SW6 1QR. 
  
The premises currently benefit from a premises licence. The current premises licence 
permits the following: 
 
Provision of late night refreshment – indoors only  
Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 23:30  

     
A copy of the current premises licence and plan can be seen on pages 12-17 of this 

report. 

 

1.2 Application Requested  
 

The applicant has applied to vary the hours for all licensable activities on the 

premises licence and add, remove and vary some conditions as outlined below:  

 
Provision of late night refreshment – indoors and outdoors  
Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 02:00  
 
Hours open to the public 
Monday to Sunday 11:00 - 02:00    
 
A copy of the application form can be seen on pages 18-28 of this report.  
 

1.3 Applicants Operating Schedule 

 

The applicant has not proposed any additional steps to promote the four licensing 

objectives if the application is granted.  

 

On the 01 December 2022, following correspondence received from the Police, the 

applicant agreed to reduce hours and add extra conditions to their licence if granted. 

A copy of this amendment and relevant correspondence can be seen on pages 29-33 

of this report. 

 

Agreed Hours: 
 
The provision of late night refreshment - Both Indoors and Outdoors 
Sunday- Thursday 23:00 - 00:00 
Friday and Saturday 23:00 - 00:30 
 
Hours open to the public 
Sunday-Thursday 11:00 - 00:00 
Friday and Saturday 11:00 - 00:30 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 
 

Agreed conditions:  
1. Signs shall be prominently displayed reminding patrons that there are residents living 
nearby and instructing them to respect neighbours and to conduct their behaviour 
accordingly. 
 
2.Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits used by delivery drivers requesting 
them to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly 
 
3.After 23:00 hours, drivers shall wait inside the premises between deliveries/for deliveries 
 
4.Delivery drivers/riders will be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles in a 
responsible manner so as to not cause nuisance to any residents or generally outside the 
licensed premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicle is parked; and not to 
obstruct the highway. The licence holder will positively encourage delivery drivers/riders to 
use quieter vehicles that are less likely to cause a nuisance such as bicycles 
 
2.  BACKGROUND 
 
The main access to the premise’s unit is located on Walham Grove at its junction with 
North End Road. There is a mixture of both residential and commercial premises 
within the area. A map showing the location of the premises and neighbouring 
licensed premises can be seen on pages 34-36 of this report. 
 
There are several options for transport away from the area including buses and taxis which 
run from in and around the North End Road and Fulham Road area. Fulham Broadway 
tube station is a 5-minute walk away and Parsons Green tube station is a 10-minute walk 
away. 
 
3.   CONSULTATION 
 
A public notice was displayed at the premises for 28 days. The application was 
advertised in a local circular and all statutory consultees were notified as required by 
the Regulations. The Council has served written notice of hearing upon the applicant 
and all those parties that have made representations in respect of the application.  
 
3.1.  Relevant Representations 
 
The Licensing section received one representation from Cllr Ben Coleman objecting 
to the licence application. A copy of this representation can be seen on page 37 of 
this report.  
 
The licensing section received fifteen representations from local residents objecting 
to the licence application. A copy of the representations can be seen on pages 38-59 
of this report.  
 
4. OTHER INFORMATION 
 
4.1 Enforcement History 
 
On the 27 October 2022, a warning letter was issued in response to a failed test 
purchase undertaken on the 21 October 2022 ascertaining unauthorised late night 
refreshment. 

Page 5



 

 
 

 
4.2 Temporary Event Notices (“TENs”)  
 
No TENs have been submitted in respect of this premises in the past twelve months. 
 
5. POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
5.1 Section 5 pages 12 and 13 of the Statement of Licensing Policy (“SLP”) states 
that in order to ensure the promotion of the four Licensing Objectives the Licensing 
Authority will require applicants to detail in their operating schedule:  
 

 the steps proposed to promote the licensing objective of the prevention of 
crime and disorder on, and in the vicinity of, the premises, having regard to 
their location, character, condition, the nature and extent of the proposed use 
and the persons likely to use the premises; 

 the steps proposed to ensure the physical safety of people using the relevant 
premises or place;  

 how they intend to prevent nuisance arising, prevent disturbance and protect 
amenity so far as is appropriate to ensure that the Licensing Objectives are 
met. Where there is a relevant representation regarding extended hours, the 
Licensing Authority will not permit an extension unless it is satisfied that the 
Licensing Objectives would be met;  

 the measures and management controls in place to protect children from 
harm. Where appropriate a written childcare policy should be available and be 
incorporated in the induction of staff. 

 
5.2 Policy 1 page 18 confirms that The Secretary of State’s Guidance states that 
applicants are expected to obtain sufficient information to enable them to 
demonstrate, the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives; and 
that they understand the layout of the local area and physical environment including: 
 
a) crime and disorder hotspots;  
b) proximity to residential premises;  
c) proximity to areas where children may congregate;  
d) any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; 
and  
e) participation in any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or 
voluntary schemes, such as ‘Ask for Angela’, local taxi-marshalling schemes, street 
pastors and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.  
 
Applicants are expected to include positive proposals in their application on how they 
will manage any potential risks.  
 
The Guidance goes on to state that ‘Applicants are expected to provide licensing 
authorities with sufficient information in this section to determine the extent to which 
their proposed steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in the local 
area. Applications must not be based on providing a set of standard conditions to 
promote the licensing objectives and applicants are expected to make it clear why the 
steps they are proposing are appropriate for the premises.’  
 
The Licensing Authority notes the contents of these paragraphs from the Secretary of 
State’s Guidance and, in particular, the use of the word ‘expected’. Licence 

Page 6



 

 
 

applications that do not in any way address the contents of these paragraphs in their 
operating schedules may be returned to the applicant as ‘incomplete’. 
 
5.3 Policy 3 page 21 of the SLP states that where there is a relevant 
representation, the Licensing Authority will consider each particular case on its merits 
having regard in particular to the following matters:  
 
a) Whether the licensed activities are likely to have an adverse impact especially on 
local residents and, if there is potential to have an adverse impact, what, if any, 
appropriate measures will be put in place to prevent it;  
b) Whether there will be a substantial increase in the cumulative adverse impact from 
these or similar activities, on an adjacent residential area;  
c) Whether there is a suitable level of public transport accessibility to and from the 
premises at the appropriate times;  
d) Whether the activity will be likely to lead to a harmful and unmanageable increase 
in car parking demand in surrounding residential streets suffering high levels of 
parking stress or on roads forming part of the Strategic London Road Network or the 
London Bus Priority Network leading to a negative impact on the Licensing 
Objectives relating to the prevention of crime, disorder, anti-social behaviour (ASB), 
nuisance and vehicle emissions;  
e) Whether there have been any representations made by Responsible Authorities, 
or other relevant agency or representative.  
 
The Licensing Authority will closely scrutinise extended hours applications to ensure 
that the Licensing Objectives are met. In determining an application the licensing 
committee might decide that the circumstances are such that a restriction on hours is 
the only appropriate means to achieve the Licensing Objectives. If an ‘hours’ 
restriction is imposed, the Licensing Authority will normally require that customers 
should be allowed a minimum of thirty minutes to consume alcohol.  
 
To act as a guide for new or existing operators we have set out the suggested closing 
times for licensed premises below: 
 

Type of 
premises 

Town centres  Mixed use areas  Residential 
areas 

Late night 
refreshment 
premises 
(Takeaways) 

Fri – Sat 01:00 
Sun – 00:00 

Fri – Sat 01:00   
Mon - Thurs 00:00  
Sun – 23:00  

Not 
considered 
Appropriate 

 
5.4 Policy 4 pages 22 and 23 of the SLP states that in determining an application 
where there has been a relevant representation the Licensing Authority will, where 
appropriate, take into account the cumulative effect of the number, type and density 
of licensed premises already existing in the area. Consideration will be given to the 
proximity to any drug and alcohol treatment site, A&E department or homeless hostel 
in a local area type remit ie applicants need to make the case for how they would not 
increase further problems for residents/clients nearby. 
 
In coming to any decision regarding cumulative impact the Licensing Authority will 
consider other mechanisms outside of the licensing regime which may also be 
available to address this issue, these include but are not limited to:  
 

Page 7



 

 
 

 Police and other enforcement of the normal law concerning disorder and anti-social 
behaviour. 

 Police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises or temporary events 
on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or excessive noise emanating from 
the premises, for up to 24 hours.  
· The power of the police, other responsible authorities, a local resident, business or 
Councillor to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question.  

 Police and Local Authority power to issue a Closure Notice for up to 48 hours 
where serious antisocial behaviour is taking place at licensed premises under the 
Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.  

 To ensure that residents are protected from the negative impact of late-night local 
licensing activities the Licensing Authority may decide to adopt an Area Specific 
Cumulative Impact Policy in relation to a specific area; where the number, type and 
density of premises providing licensable activities is having a serious negative impact 
on the local community and local amenities. 
 
5.5  Policy 11 page 30 of the SLP states that Licensing law is not the primary 
mechanism for the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour caused by 
people once they are away from the licensed premises and, therefore, beyond the 
direct control of the licensee. However, licensing is a key aspect of such control and 
licensing law is part of a holistic approach to the management of the night time 
economy.  
 
As a matter of policy the council expects every holder of a licence, certificate or 
permission, to accept and be responsible for minimising the impact of their activities 
and anti-social behaviour by their patrons within the vicinity of their premises by 
taking appropriate measures and action consistent with that responsibility.  
 
Licensees and certificate holders should take reasonable steps to prevent the 
occurrence of crime and disorder and public nuisance immediately outside their 
premises, for example on the pavement, in a beer garden or in a smoking area, to the 
extent that these matters are within their control. 
 
Population densities in this borough are high, with many residential premises located 
above or in close proximity to licensed premises. This means that the public nuisance 
and crime and disorder objectives will be of paramount concern when evaluating 
Operating Schedules. Licensing Committees will place high regard on the control 
measures put in place by the applicant to ensure that our residents are protected 
from the potential detrimental effects of any licensed premises. 
 
5.6 Policy 14 pages 32 and 33 of the SLP in relation to delivery services states 
that the Licensing Authority has concerns with the potential for the following:  

 
• Age verification at both purchase point and delivery point;  
• The safety of delivery drivers at the point of delivery;  
• Safety of the premises from which orders are taken and sent out for deliver; 
and, • Possible public nuisance and anti-social behaviour (ASB) caused by 
delivery drivers collecting deliveries from the licensed premises.  

 
The Licensing Authority is likely to place the following conditions on to a premises 
licence for delivery services where it is appropriate and relevant to the individual 
licence application:  

Page 8



 

 
 

• A standard age verification check shall be undertaken on entering the website.  
• A signature at the point of delivery must be obtained. No delivery shall be left 
without a signature.  
• Alcohol shall only be delivered to a residential or business address and not to a 
public place.  
• Every third-party courier delivery box shall be labelled with the words “Age 
Restricted Product”.  
• Any delivery driver or third-party courier will be required to have appropriate 
age verification training, particularly they will be required to have training in 
refusal of supply where age verification is not provided.  
• A refusals log will be maintained for deliveries.  
• Appropriate security will be in place at the premises as agreed with Police.  
• Measures for minimising noise and disturbance and anti-social behaviour 
(ASB) caused by the dispatch of deliveries to be identified in the operating 
schedule. In particular applicants are expected to consider the use of electric 
vehicles to minimise air pollution and noise. The Licensing Authority expects that 
applicants will make arrangements for all deliveries after 8 pm to be made using 
electric vehicles or non motorised vehicles i.e. bicycles.  
• A requirement for a specific delivery collection area to be made clear to any 
third party delivery service. This area may not be directly outside the licensed 
premises to take account of any residential accommodation close by or 
obstructing the pavement/highways. 

 
5.7 Annex 1 pages 35 and 36 of the SLP in relation to the prevention of crime and 
disorder states licence applicants will be expected to demonstrate the following in 
their operating schedules:  
a) Measures to control excessive consumption and intoxication.  
b) Consideration of any additional measures or restrictions that may be placed on 
alcohol sales to prevent binge drinking and promote ‘sensible drinking’. 
e) Measures to demonstrate compliance Home Office guidance ‘ Safer Clubbing’ in 
relation to the control of illegal drugs on their premises. They should agree a protocol 
with the Licensing Authority and the police on the handling of illegal drugs found on 
their premises. 
g)Conditions will, so far as possible, reflect local crime prevention strategies, and the 
Licensing Authority will also have regard to the views of the local Crime and Disorder 
Reduction Partnership.  
h) Crime and disorder in the vicinity of the premises: this may include the crime 
and disorder risks arising from persons queuing to enter the premises; persons 
exiting the premises and customers smoking eating or drinking in outdoor areas and 
on the highway outside the premises. This can also include crime arising from 
pickpockets and bag snatchers, particularly in open spaces or crowded areas where 
alcohol is being consumed.  
j) CCTV - using CCTV inside and/or outside the premises together with appropriate 
procedures and having staff properly trained to use CCTV equipment 
l) dealing with and reporting crime and disorder - training for staff and door 
security aimed at reducing crime and disorder in the premises and its vicinity and 
dealing with and reporting incidents if they occur. 
p) local schemes – joining and attending local Pubwatch meetings and participating 
in the Behave or Be Banned Scheme (BOBB) and/or signing up and using the 
Council’s Safety Net Radio scheme. 
q) prevention of theft - using bag hooks and signage to warn customers of 
pickpockets and bag snatchers. 

Page 9



 

 
 

 
5.7 Annex 1 pages 38 to 40 of the SLP in relation to the prevention of public 
nuisance states that the Licensing Authority will particularly consider the following 
matters where they are material to the individual application:  
 
i.The Licensing Authority recommends that primarily alcohol led premises such as 
nightclubs and pubs, located close to any residential premises, implement a dispersal 
policy at their venue. All relevant staff should be trained on any policy, and all Page 
39 reasonable steps should be taken to ensure it is fully implemented and adhered to 
at all times. 
ii. The proximity of residential accommodation;  
iii. The type of use proposed, including the likely numbers of customers, proposed 
hours of operation and the frequency of activity;   
iv. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent noise and 
vibration escaping from the premises, including music, noise from ventilation 
equipment, and human voices. Such measures may include the installation of 
soundproofing, air conditioning, acoustic lobbies and sound limitation devices;  
v. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent disturbance 
by customers arriving at or leaving the premises.  
viii. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to prevent queuing 
(either by pedestrian or vehicular traffic). If some queuing is inevitable then queues 
should be diverted away from neighbouring premises or be otherwise managed to 
prevent disturbance or obstruction;  
ix. The steps taken or proposed to be taken by the applicant to ensure staff leave the 
premises quietly;  
x. The arrangements made or proposed for parking by patrons, and the effect of 
parking by patrons on local residents;  
xi. The provision for public transport in the locality (including taxis and private hire 
vehicles) for patrons;  
xii. The level of likely disturbance from associated vehicular and pedestrian 
movement to and from the premises;  
xiii. The delivery and collection areas and delivery/collection times;  
xv. The arrangements for refuse disposal, storage and the prevention/tidying of litter 
(including fly posters and illegal placards);  
xviii. The generation of odour, e.g. from the preparation of food;  
xix. Any other relevant activity likely to give rise to nuisance;  
xx. Any representations made by the Police, or other relevant agency or 
representative;  
 
The following provides a non-exhaustive list of risks associated with the public 
nuisance objective that applicants may want to consider when preparing their 
Operating Schedule:  
 
j) Deliveries/collections – noise from deliveries to and/or collections (e.g. refuse) from the 
premises are another common source of complaint. Consider the times of such 
deliveries/collections and make sure you specify to any contractors that 
deliveries/collections should not be made at anti-social times. As a guide, the Noise and 
Nuisance Service recommend that deliveries/collections should only be made between the 
hours of 7:30am and 9:00pm, depending on the proximity of residential and/or other 
noisesensitive properties.  
k) Late night refreshment - applicants in respect of late night takeaways should 
demonstrate that they have assessed the risk of persons congregating in large numbers in 

Page 10



 

 
 

the vicinity of their premises. Where appropriate, applicants should demonstrate suitable 
measures to address this problem.  
l) Light pollution – this is an increasingly common source of complaint, particularly from 
illuminated signs and external security lighting. Where provided, illuminated signs should 
not cause glare to neighbouring properties, ideally being turned off at night, and external 
lighting should be angled and/or diffused to also prevent nuisance. 
o) Odour – odour from cooking is a common source of complaint, particularly from 
restaurants and fast[1]food takeaways. The Council’s Noise and Nuisance Service may 
therefore require evidence that the kitchen ventilation and/or extract systems are regularly 
maintained and serviced to ensure that it is operating efficiently and with minimal nuisance 
to neighbours arising from odour and also noise. This includes the siting of BBQs.  
p) Queue management - establishing appropriate procedures to avoid the need for 
customers to queue before entering the premises or, where queuing cannot be avoided, to 
manage queues so as to minimise the potential for crime and disorder or public nuisance 
by customers who are queuing. 
q) Ventilation – where regulated entertainment is to be provided there may be a 
requirement to keep doors and/or windows closed during its provision to limit noise 
breakout, consider therefore the provision of air conditioning for the comfort of your 
customers if doors and windows have to be closed during the summer. However, also note 
air conditioning can be the source of noise complaints in itself, so careful consideration 
also needs to be given to the siting of this equipment. 
r) Waste – consider how and where waste will be stored/disposed of at the end of trading 
hours, particularly if trading until late at night. This is important because the disposal of 
glass and/or cans to outside bin areas can be very noisy and give rise to complaints, so it 
may be necessary to store such items and other non-degradable refuse inside the 
premises until the next trading day. Consideration should also be given to the time of 
deliveries to minimize disruption to local residents. 
s) Litter – for example, litter patrols for late night take-away premises 
 
6. DETERMINATION 
6.1 In determining this application, the Committee must have regard to the 
representations and take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. The steps are: 
 
(a) Grant the application in full  
(b) Grant the application in part – modifying the proposed hours, activities or 
conditions.  
(c) Reject the application 
 
It is the Council’s duty under the Licensing Act 2003 (“The Act”) to determine 
applications with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives; Prevention of 
Crime and Disorder, Public Safety, Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Protection 
of Children from Harm. 
 
In reaching a decision the Council shall consider the details of any relevant 
representations received; the applicant’s Operating Schedule; the Council’s adopted 
Statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
under section 182 of the Act. 
 
If the Committee is minded to grant the application conditions may be attached to the 
licence to alleviate the concerns raised through the representations. 

Page 11



 

Licensing Act 2003  

Premises Licence  

 

     Page 1 of 5 

 
Premises Licence Number:  2022/00867/LAPR 

 

Part 1 – Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of 

the premises 
 

Papa Johns Pizza 
63 Walham Grove 

Post town:  London Post code:  SW6 1QR 

Telephone:   

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates: 

 
Not Applicable 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 
 
Provision of Late Night Refreshment -Indoors Only  

 

 

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities 

on the days and at the times specified below: 
 

Provision of Late Night Refreshment  -Indoors Only    
Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 23:30   
 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 
 

       -       

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and 
/ or off supplies: 

 

Not Applicable 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 12



 

 

13.06.20222010/01283/LAPR Page 2 of 5 

Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) 
of holder of premises licence: 

 
DFSI M25 Ltd 

Unit 1 Westward Parade 
Pepper Street 

London 
E14 9DZ  

 
Email:Leila@papajohns-group.co.uk  

 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity 

number (where applicable): 
 

13240874 
 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor 
where the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol: 

 
Not Applicable 

 

 
Annex 1 – Mandatory Conditions 

 
Not Applicable 

 
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the operating Schedule 

 
1. All staff shall be trained to understand the four licensing objectives. 

 
2. Notices shall be displayed requesting customers to leave the premises quietly. 

 

3. Regular litter patrols shall take place around the external area of the premises. 
 

4. CCTV systems shall be in operation at the premises. 
 

 
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
 

Signed:           Date: 13.06.2022  
Authorised Officer  

Page 13



 

 

13.06.20222010/01283/LAPR Page 3 of 5 

Annex 4- Plans: 
 

Please insert plans at page 3 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

 

13.06.20222010/01283/LAPR Page 4 of 5 

 

Licensing Act 2003  

Premises Licence  

 
Premises Licence Summary 

 

 
Premises Licence Number: 2022/00867/LAPR 

 

Premises details 
 

Postal address of premises, or if none, OS map reference or description of 

the premises 
 

Papa Johns Pizza 
63 Walham Grove 

Post town:  London Post code:  SW6 1QR 

Telephone:   

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates: 

 
Not Applicable 

 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: 

 
Provision of Late Night Refreshment -Indoors Only  

 

 

The licence authorises the carrying out of the following licensable activities 

on the days and at the times specified below: 
 

Provision of Late Night Refreshment  -Indoors Only    
Monday to Sunday 23:00 - 23:30   

 

 

The opening hours of the premises: 

 
       -       

 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / 

or off supplies: 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 

Page 15



 

 

13.06.20222010/01283/LAPR Page 5 of 5 

Name, (registered) address, of holder of premises licence: 
 

DFSI M25 Ltd 
Unit 1 Westward Parade 

Pepper Street 
London 

E14 9DZ  
 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number 
(where applicable): 

 
13240874 

 

 

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 

authorises the supply of alcohol: 
 

Not Applicable 
 

 

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited: 
 

No Restrictions 
 

 

 

Signed:           Date: 13.06.2022 

Authorised Officer         
 

 

 
 

 

Page 16



 
 

Page 17



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Hammersmith and Fulham
Application to vary a premises licence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

licensing@lbhf.gov.uk

Telephone: 020 8753 1081 

* required information

Section 1 of 18

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use This is the unique reference for this 
application generated by the system.

Your reference BH Papa Johns You can put what you want here to help you 
track applications if you make lots of them. It 
is passed to the authority.

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

Yes No

Put "no" if you are applying on your own 
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or 
work for.

Applicant Details

* First name DFSI  M25 LTD

* Family name

* E-mail

Main telephone number Include country code.

Other telephone number

Indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Are you:

Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader

Applying as an individual

A sole trader is a business owned by one 
person without any special legal structure.  
Applying as an individual means you are 
applying so you can be employed, or for 
some other personal reason, such as 
following a hobby.

Applicant Business
Is your business registered in 
the UK with Companies 
House?

Yes No Note: completing the Applicant Business 
section is optional in this form.

Registration number 13240874

Business name DFSI M25 Ltd
If your business is registered, use its 
registered name.

VAT number - Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Legal status Private Limited Company

Application amended on the 15/11/2022 with agent's consent originally given on the 4/11/2022

Page 18



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business

Home country United Kingdom
The country where the headquarters of your 
business is located.

Registered Address

Building number or name Unit 1

Street Westward Parade

District Pepper Street

City or town London.

County or administrative area

Postcode E14 9DZ

Country United Kingdom

Address registered with Companies House.

Section 2 of 18

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to 
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence, 
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below.

* Premises Licence Number 2022/00867/LAPR

Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?

Address OS map reference Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name 63

Street Walham Grove

District

City or town London

County or administrative area

Postcode SW6 1QR

Country United Kingdom

Premises Contact Details

Telephone number

Page 19



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Non-domestic rateable 
value of premises (£)

Section 3 of 18

VARIATION

Do you want the proposed 
variation to have effect as 
soon as possible?

Yes No

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the 
introduction of the late night levy? 

Yes No You do not have to pay a fee if the only 
purpose of the variation for which you are 
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the 
late night levy.

If your proposed variation 
would mean that 5,000 or 
more people are expected to 
attend the premises at any 
one time, state the number 
expected to attend

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which 
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to 
provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its 
proximity to the premises.

 
This application is to extend the hours of Late Night Refreshment of the existing premise license from   
                                                                        23.00 to 23.30hrs to 23.00 to 02.00hrs 
 
 
  

Section 4 of 18

PROVISION OF PLAYS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 5 of 18

PROVISION OF FILMS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Page 20



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 6 of 18

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 7 of 18

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject 
to change if this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 8 of 18

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 9 of 18

PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this 
application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 10 of 18

PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 11 of 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF 
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or 
performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is 
successful?

Yes No
Page 21



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 12 of 18

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if 
this application to vary is successful?

Yes No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 23:00 End 02:00

Start End

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or 
both?

Indoors Outdoors Both Where taking place in a building or other 
structure  select as appropriate. Indoors may 
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not 
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Page 22



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the provision of late night refreshment at different times from 
those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 13 of 18

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to 
vary is successful?

Yes No

Section 14 of 18

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the 
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may 
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for 
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

None

Section 15 of 18

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

Provide timings in 24 hour clock 
(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days 
of the week when you intend the premises 
to be used for the activity.

Page 23



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

WEDNESDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

THURSDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

FRIDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

SATURDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

SUNDAY

Start 11:00 End 02:00

Start End

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from 
those listed above, list below. 

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 24



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the 
proposed variation you are seeking.

I have enclosed the premises licence

I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence

Reasons why I have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence.

Section 16 of 18

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) 
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 

The four objectives will remain as to the original premise license 2022/00867/LAPR.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

c) Public safety

d) The prevention of public nuisance

e) The protection of children from harm

Page 25



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

Section 17 of 18

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

• Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience  
 does not exceed 500. 

• Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises  between 08.00 and  
 23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the  
 screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides  
 by age classification ratings. 

• Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided  
 that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

• Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman  
 wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not  
 exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or  
 wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an  
 indoor sporting event. 

• Live music: no licence permission is required for: 
o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell  
 alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not  
 licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises 
 of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,  
 and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local  
 authority concerned, or (ii) the school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

• Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell alcohol  
 for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,  
 community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell  
 alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the  
 performance from a person who is responsible for the premises. 
o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a  
 local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) 
 the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority  
 concerned, or (ii) the school proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

Page 26



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

• Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the  
 audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains  
 licensable. 

• Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on  
 audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided 
 by or on behalf of the local authority;  
o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the  
 entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;  
o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or  
 on behalf of the school proprietor; and 
o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling  
 circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and  
 (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days. 

Section 18 of 18

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Variation Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises. 
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm 
Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00 
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00 
Band C - £33001 to £8700 £315.00 
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00* 
Band E - £125001 and over £635.00* 
*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee 
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00 
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00 
If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time 
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00 
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00 
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00 
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00 
Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00 
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00 
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00 
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00 
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00 
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00 
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

* Fee amount (£) 190.00

DECLARATION

* It is an offence, under section 158 of the licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this 
application. Those who make a false statement may be liable on summary conviction to a fine of any amount.

Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on 
behalf of the applicant?”

Page 27



© Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 

Continued from previous page...

* Full name Barrie Hodgson

* Capacity Agent

* Date 04 / 11 / 2022
 dd               mm             yyyy

Add another signatory

Once you're finished you need to do the following: 
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...
2. Go back to  https://www.gov.uk/apply-for-a-licence/premises-licence/hammersmith-and-fulham/change-1 to upload this 
file and continue with your application.
Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN 
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY 
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

OFFICE USE ONLY

Applicant reference number BH Papa Johns 

Fee paid

Payment provider reference

ELMS Payment Reference

Payment status

Payment authorisation code

Payment authorisation date

Date and time submitted

Approval deadline

Error message

Is Digitally signed

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 Next >

Page 28



From: Kristen  
Sent: 02 December 2022 08:05 
To: Licensing HF: H&F    
Subject: FW: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London 
SW6 1QR  
 
Good Morning Licensing, 
 
Please refer to the conditions and timings agreed (highlighted in red below) between 
the Police and the applicant for the above application.  
 
Kind regards, 
 
Kris.  
 
The provision of late night refreshment - Both Indoors and Outdoors 
Sunday- Thursday between the hours of 23:00 to 00:00 
Friday and Saturday 23:00-00:30 
Proposed Opening Hours: 
Sunday-Thursday 11:00-00:00 
Friday and Saturday 11:00-00:30 
 
1. Signs shall be prominently displayed reminding patrons that there are residents 
living nearby and instructing them to respect neighbours and to conduct their 
behaviour accordingly. 
 
2.Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits used by delivery drivers 
requesting them to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly 
 
3.After 23:00 hours, drivers shall wait inside the premises between deliveries/for 
deliveries 
 
4.Delivery drivers/riders will be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles 
in a responsible manner so as to not cause nuisance to any residents or generally 
outside the licensed premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicle is 
parked; and not to obstruct the highway. The licence holder will positively encourage 
delivery drivers/riders to use quieter vehicles that are less likely to cause a nuisance 
such as bicycles 
 
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable  

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 
From: Cardwell Kris J - AW-CU  
Sent: 02 December 2022 08:02 
To: 'Leila Mustafa'   
Cc: Sondh Nicole K - AW-CU   
Subject: RE: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London 
SW6 1QR  

Page 29



 
Good Morning Leila, 
 
Many thanks for your email agreeing the conditions that I have proposed. I will inform 
the Local Authority who will amend your application.  
 
Kind regards, 
 
Kris.  
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable  

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 
From: Leila Mustafa   
Sent: 01 December 2022 18:55 
To: Cardwell Kris J - AW-CU   
Subject: Re: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London SW6 
1QR  
 
Hi Kris,  
 
I apologise for the late response.  
 
We understand the reasons for the conditions and timings you have proposed. 
 
Customers, employees and local residents' safety is very important to us therefore 
we are happy to go ahead with the timings and conditions you have proposed.  
 
Thank you. 
 

Kind regards,  

Leila Mustafa 

DFSI M25 LTD 

 

 
From: Kristen 
Sent: 01 December 2022 18:06 
To: Leila Mustafa   
Subject: RE: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London 
SW6 1QR  
 
Good Evening Leila and Barrie, 
 
The last day of objection to this licensing application is tomorrow. Do you have an 
update in relation to the conditions that I have proposed as detailed below in red? 

Page 30



 
Kind regards, 
 
Kris.  
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable  

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 

From: Cardwell Kris J - AW-CU  
Sent: 30 November 2022 14:30 
To:imustafa, barriehodgson  
Cc: Sondh Nicole K - AW-CU   
Subject: FW: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London 
SW6 1QR  
 
Good Afternoon Layla, 
 
After our conversation just now, please refer to the below recommended timings of 
licensable activity and conditions from the Police for this application.  
 
Please let myself and Nicole know if you agree to these conditions and I will contact 
the Local Authority who can amend the application. 
 
The provision of late night refreshment - Both Indoors and Outdoors 
Sunday- Thursday between the hours of 23:00 to 00:00 
Friday and Saturday 23:00-00:30 
Proposed Opening Hours: 
Sunday-Thursday 11:00-00:00 
Friday and Saturday 11:00-00:30 
 
1. Signs shall be prominently displayed reminding patrons that there are residents 
living nearby and instructing them to respect neighbours and to conduct their 
behaviour accordingly. 
 
2.Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits used by delivery drivers 
requesting them to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly 
 
3.After 23:00 hours, drivers shall wait inside the premises between deliveries/for 
deliveries 
 
4.Delivery drivers/riders will be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles 
in a responsible manner so as to not cause nuisance to any residents or generally 
outside the licensed premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicle is 
parked; and not to obstruct the highway. The licence holder will positively encourage 
delivery drivers/riders to use quieter vehicles that are less likely to cause a nuisance 
such as bicycles 
 
Kind regards, 
 

Page 31



Kris.  
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable  

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 
From: Cardwell Kris J - AW-CU  
Sent: 28 November 2022 09:10 
To: barriehodgson 
Subject: RE: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London 
SW6 1QR  
 
Good Morning Mr Hodgson, 
 
Please can you confirm receipt of my email dated the 18th of November and provide 
an update as the LDO is this Friday? 
 
Regards, 
 
Kris.  
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable 3286AW 

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 
From: Cardwell Kris J - AW-CU  
Sent: 18 November 2022 12:33 
To: barriehodgson 
Subject: 2022/01816/LAPR:- Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham Grove London SW6 
1QR  
 
Good Afternoon Mr Hodgson, 
 
My name is Kris Cardwell, I am one of two Police Licensing Officers that cover the 
Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham, the other is my colleague Nicole Sondh. I can 
confirm that the Metropolitan Police are in receipt of the premises licence application 
for Papa John’s Pizza 63 Walham Grove London SW6 1QR as detailed below:- 
 
Licensable activity to vary: 
The provision of late night refreshment - Both Indoors and Outdoors 
Mondays to Sundays between the hours of 23:00 to 02:00 
Proposed Opening Hours: 
Mondays to Sundays between the hours of 11:00 to 02:00 
Current licensable activity: 
The provision of late night refreshment - Indoors Only 
Mondays to Sundays between the hours of 23:00 to 23:30 
 
Having read the application, I have concerns about the hours of licensable activity 
applied for. The premises is located in an area of very high anti-social behaviour and 

Page 32



is a crime hot spot. I am of the opinion that these later hours of licensable activity 
would likely increase crime and disorder in the area.  
 
I visited the premises yesterday and there appears to be a residential property 
directly above the premises. It is also situated at the end of a residential street and is 
the gathering place for a number of delivery riders who park their vehicles directly 
opposite the premises. These later hours of licensable activity would undoubtedly 
create general issues that may disrupt local residents. I have copied in Noise and 
Nuisance Officers from the Local Authority for any comment.  
 
The Police do want to try and assist businesses and therefore I am recommending 
the following timings and further conditions be added to the application:- 
 
The provision of late night refreshment - Both Indoors and Outdoors 
Sunday- Thursday between the hours of 23:00 to 00:00 
Friday and Saturday 23:00-00:30 
Proposed Opening Hours: 
Sunday-Thursday 11:00-00:00 
Friday and Saturday 11:00-00:30 
 
1. Signs shall be prominently displayed reminding patrons that there are residents 
living nearby and instructing them to respect neighbours and to conduct their 
behaviour accordingly. 
 
2.Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits used by delivery drivers 
requesting them to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly 
 
3.After 23:00 hours, drivers shall wait inside the premises between deliveries/for 
deliveries 
 
4.Delivery drivers/riders will be given clear, written instructions to use their vehicles 
in a responsible manner so as to not cause nuisance to any residents or generally 
outside the licensed premises; not to leave engines running when the vehicle is 
parked; and not to obstruct the highway. The licence holder will positively encourage 
delivery drivers/riders to use quieter vehicles that are less likely to cause a nuisance 
such as bicycles 
 
I am away from the office from today until the 28th of November so please copy my 
colleague Nicole Sondh into any response.  
 
I look forward to hearing from you, 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Kris. 
 
Kris Cardwell 

Police Constable 3286AW 

Licensing Officer - Hammersmith and Fulham (Central West BCU) 

 

Page 33



Page 34



REF TRADE AS ADDRESS ACTIVITY Monday to 

Sunday

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday Sunday

2013/01213/LAPR Dance Attic Studios 368 North End 

Road London SW6 1LY

Performance of 

Dance

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

22:30:00
Exhibition of a Film 09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

22:30:00
Performance of Live 

Music

18:00:00 - 

23:00:00

18:00:00 - 

23:00:00

18:00:00 - 

22:30:00
Playing of Recorded 

Music

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

22:30:00
Performance of a 

Play

18:00:00 - 

23:00:00

18:00:00 - 

22:30:00
Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00
Sale of Alcohol On 

the Premises

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

23:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

01:00:00

09:00:00 - 

22:30:00
2019/00168/LAPR Nando's 348 North End 

Road London SW6 1NB 

Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00
Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

11:30:00 - 

23:00:00

2021/00450/LAPR Simmons Bar 374 North End 

Road London SW6 1LY

Performance of Live 

Music

18:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Playing of Recorded 

Music

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Entertainment 

Similar to Music or 

Dance

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

Sale of Alcohol On 

the Premises

11:00:00 - 

23:45:00
2022/00867/LAPR Papa Johns Pizza 63 Walham 

Grove London SW6 1QR

Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00
2019/00429/LAPR The Cock Tavern 360 North End Road

London

SW6 1LY

Exhibition of a Film 10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

Playing of Recorded 

Music

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00
Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00

23:00:00 - 

00:30:00

23:00:00 - 

00:30:00

23:00:00 - 

23:30:00
Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

00:30:00

10:00:00 - 

23:30:00

P
age 35



2021/00422/LAPR The Malt House Jolly Maltster 17 Vanston 

Place London SW6 1AY 

Performance of Live 

Music

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Playing of Recorded 

Music

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Regulated 

Entertainment for 

Private Use
Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

Performance of Live 

Music

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Playing of Recorded 

Music

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Provision of Late 

Night Refreshment

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00

23:00:00 - 

01:00:00

23:00:00 - 

00:00:00
Regulated 

Entertainment for 

Private Use
Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

01:00:00

10:00:00 - 

00:00:00

2022/00769/LAPR Bavarian Bar- North 

Yard & SW Corner Of 

The North Yard

St John's Church Walham 

Green North End 

Road London SW6 1PB 

Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

21:45:00

11:00:00 - 

20:45:00

2021/00248/LAPR Hoxton Market Ltd St John's Church Walham 

Green North End 

Road London SW6 1PB 

Sale of Alcohol On 

and Off the 

Premises

09:00:00 - 

18:00:00

09:00:00 - 

18:00:00

2013/01483/LAPR St Johns Church St John's Church Walham 

Green North End 

Road London SW6 1PB

Performance of Live 

Music

17:00:00 - 

23:00:00

Performance of a 

Play

17:00:00 - 

23:00:00
Sale of Alcohol On 

the Premises

17:00:00 - 

23:00:00
2019/00248/LAPR Fouberts 2 Vanston 

Place London SW6 1AY 

Sale of Alcohol On 

the Premises

11:00:00 - 

22:30:00

11:00:00 - 

22:30:00

11:00:00 - 

22:30:00

11:00:00 - 

22:30:00

11:00:00 - 

22:30:00

11:00:00 - 

22:00:00

P
age 36



From: Cllr Coleman Ben 
Sent: 02 December 2022 12:32 
To: Overton Adrian 
Subject: Re: Application 2022/01816 Papa Johns 63 Walham Grove 
  

Adrian 

  
Thank you. I wish to be associated with the objections sent in by residents. Can that be 
noted for the committee, please? 

  
Regards 

  
Ben  

 
From: Cllr Coleman Ben 
Sent: 02 December 2022 15:21 
To: Overton Adrian 
Subject: Re: Application 2022/01816 Papa Johns 63 Walham Grove 
 
Adrian 
 
Thank you. Having heard from numerous residents, I wish to raise an objection to 
the above application as it stands on public order and noise nuisance grounds.  
 
Please treat this as a representation  
 
Regards 
 
Ben Coleman 
  

Page 37



From: Ingrid Hierner  
Sent: 21 November 2022 16:19 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
 
I write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
  Walham Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner on 
similar roads off at the North End Road.  
  Unfortunately. It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise, 
nuisance, ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. Extending 
hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road 
and beyond. 
In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s. 
In 2018 the offender was jailed for life.  Unfortunately, this area continues to suffer 
from a high amount of crime and disorder & ASB, mainly at night. Our local Lillie 
Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing Police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway.  
We understand that the Council’s efforts to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy.  
MacDonalds, close by, is open until midnight, which we think is already too late  for 
residents trying to sleep, especially children.  
It is unfortunate that the Applicant has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance, or 
ASB  mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask for hours to 02:00.  
Please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote the four licensing 
objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, noise nuisance, 
emissions nuisance, and anti-social behaviour in and around Walham Grove.  
 
There are cars constantly parked on the double yellow line, these cars belong to the 
customers going to papa Jones and JK kitchen. They are blocking traffic, obstructing 
the view when we want to cross the street, and basically are illegally parked. Not 
mentioning the litter that the owners are throwing out of their  windows, which will be 
even worse if they stay  open late. 
 
Ingrid de T'Serclaes 
Walham Grove 
London SW6 1QR 
 
 
 
  

Page 38



From: Andrew Collins   
Sent: 21 November 2022 10:33 
To: Licensing HF: H&F  
Subject: APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR  
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
I write to oppose this application which relates to Papa John’s pizza takeaway 
operating from 63 Walham Grove SW6 1Q. The application seeks to extend the 
shop’s opening hours for the sale of pizzas, etc from the present allowed time of 
23:30, to 02:00, all week long.  
The location of the shop is in a residential road which is separated from the busier 
area of Fulham Broadway. Unfortunate experience would dictate that those seeking 
that sort of refreshment after 23.30 are likely to be inebriated and therefore equally 
likely to cause additional noise and disturbance to an otherwise (at night time, at 
least) quiet residential area. 
Another factor is the responsibility, or lack of it, of the proprietors/managers of the 
shop. The amount of rubbish left loose on the pavement every night is appalling. 
This has been mentioned to staff, but no action taken. If rubbish is to be disposed of, 
it is irresponsible not to place it into containers. Often, by dawn the piles of rubbish, 
left loose on the pavement, have been re-distributed by foxes. This already 
constitutes a health hazard through the encouragement of vermin and the problem 
would only be added to by the extension of their licence into the silent hours. 
I strongly oppose the application upon the grounds set out above. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
Andrew Collins 
Walham Grove 
London SW6 1QR 
 
 
  

Page 39



From: Caroline Ellis  
Sent: 21 November 2022 10:51 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Papa John’s 63 Walham Grove SW6 1QR APPLICATION 
2022/01816/LAPR 
 
I write to oppose the application 2022/01816/LAPR to extend Papa Johns licensing.  
 
Papa Johns seems to have no arrangement for litter itself and it’s customers 
regularly dump their rubbish in the gardens of Walham Grove. Walham Grove is a 
residential street not suitable for mainstream late night operators which creat noise 
from motorbike delivery and drunk clients.  Papa Johns is not in keeping with the 
conservation area that is Walham Grove and makes no effort to conserve the street. 
Please reject the application on the grounds that their operation is inappropriate for a 
residential street and their current operation is not run to an adequate standard 
regarding litter, noise and customer control.  
 
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
 
Caroline Ellis 
Walham Grove 
 
From: Caroline Ellis  
Sent: 17 January 2023 12:25 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Re: 2022/01816/LAPR Papa Johns Pizza, 63 Walham Grove London SW6 
1QR  
 
I still strongly object. Walham Grove is a residential conservation street and a Papa 
Johns late night license is completely out of keeping. The street noise and nuisance 
levels from papa johns delivery drivers and clients is already out of control. They 
have no staff capable of controlling customers. Pubs employ individuals to manage 
nuisance customers where Papa Johns just lets them run amok. I constantly have 
rubbish and noise from their customers already without this going on until midnight.  
 
From: Caroline Ellis  
Sent: 17 January 2023 12:27 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Re: 2022/01816/LAPR Papa Johns Pizza, 63 Walham Grove London SW6 
1QR  
 
How many accidents on the street are Papa Johns reporting? Their drivers are a 
liability looking at phones whilst driving and hence crashing into things. I have photo 
evidence of such incidents E.g. driving into the back of taxis dropping off or into 
parked cars. No more of this please.  
 
 
 

Page 40



From: marnismith 
Sent: 21 November 2022 11:52 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR Papa John’s 63 Walham Grove SW6 
1QR  
 
To whom it may concern, 
 
APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR to extend hours for ‘Late Night Refreshment’ ie 
hot food only (not alcohol) from the present allowed 23:30, to 02:00, Mon-Sun.  
 
I write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
 
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
 
Walham Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner on 
similar roads off at the North End Road.  
 
Unfortunately. It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise, 
nuisance, ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. Extending 
hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road 
and beyond.  
 
In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s. 
In 2018 the offender was jailed for life. Unfortunately, this area continues to suffer 
from a high amount of crime and disorder & ASB, mainly at night. Our local Lillie 
Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing Police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway.  
 
We understand that the Council’s efforts to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy.  
 
MacDonalds, close by, is open until midnight, which we think is already too late for 
residents trying to sleep, especially children.  
 
It is unfortunate that the Applicant has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance, or 
ASB mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask for hours to 02:00.  
 
Please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote the four licensing 
objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, noise nuisance, 
emissions nuisance, and anti-social behaviour in and around Walham Grove.  
 
 
Marni Smith 
Walham Grove, SW61QR 
 

Page 41



From: lucillaroyden 
Sent: 21 November 2022 13:09 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Re: APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR  
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I oppose the application made by Papa John's Pizza takeaway located at 63 Walham 
Grove, SW6 1QR to extend their licensing hours for the sale of pizzas from the 
present closing time of 23:00 to the later 02:00. An addition of 3 hours every night of 
the week. I base my objection on the following: 
 
Crime and Disorder 
Drug dealing and other illicit dealings. Such activity in the area gave rise to a murder 
of drug dealer Salim Coulter who was shot dead outside Jerky's Chicken fast food 
restaurant in Walham Grove on 5 November 2016, to which I was a witness to and 
attended the court hearing. 
 
Public Nuisance 
Noise caused by customers and motorbikes. Residents (adults and children) kept 
awake at night with concomitant effect on mental health.  
Litter. Walham Grove is subject to more litter than other residential streets in Fulham, 
especially fast food. Beer bottles, cans and half eaten trays of food are a constant 
feature at the end of the street nearest the North End Road. The broken glass is 
potentially harmful to domestic pets and the food scraps encourage foxes to inhabit 
the area. 
 
Public Safety 
Loitering and anti - social behaviour.  There are less members of the general public 
out and about on the streets late at night and early hours of the morning who may 
act as witnesses or deterrents to anti - social behaviour. 
 

Prevention of children from harm 

Fast food outlets are popular among young people. No problem with that.  Problems 
arise when young people are tempted to stay out later at night on a regular basis. 
Apart from the effect on health and wellbeing that such a lifestyle encourages, they 
are also exposed to potential illegal activity.  
 
I would also point out that licenses can be transferred to a new operator without 
intervention. A precedent we do not want to set. On these grounds I object to the 
license extension requested by Papa John's.   
 
Yours faithfully  
 
Mrs Lucilla Royden  
Walham Grove  
 
From: Lucilla Royden  
Sent: 11 January 2023 18:16 

Page 42



To: Licensing HF 
Subject: APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR Papa Johns Pizza  
  
Good evening 
 
Further to my representation emailed on the 21 November 2022, I would like to draw 
your attention please to the email below I have received from Coz Greenop, the 
manager of Maggies nightclub in Fulham. It would appear that Papa Johns have 
illegally pre-empted their licencing application by already extending their opening 
hours. I would like to add this to my representation. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Regards 
Lucilla Royden 
 

 
From: Coz Greenop   
Sent: 11 January 2023 17:39 
To: Lucilla Royden  
Subject: Papa Johns  
  
Hi Lucilla.   
 
I’m am writing this to confirm that I am a manager at Maggies nightclub on the 
Fulham road. We are open Thursday -Saturday from 10pm until 3:30am.  
 
As I am usually walking home around 3:30am and 4am I have seen on several 
occasions and even bought pizza from Papa Johns on Walham Grove around this 
time and they are open. They have now got blinds to cover up but they on occasion 
still operate.  
 
Kind regards 
Coz Greenop  
 
  

Page 43



From: CATHERINE MACTAGGART  
Sent: 21 November 2022 10:31 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Papa John's 63 Walham Grove, London SW6 1QR application 2022/01816/LAPR 
 
I write to oppose this application:  2022/01816/LAPR If a hearing is held for the LBHF 
Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this application, and I am unable to attend, please 
note that my neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative can speak for me.  
 
Walham Grove already suffers from the litter Papa John’s customers leave on the street.  
They sometimes drive here, sit in their cars with the music/radio blaring and then chuck the 
pizza box out onto the pavement.  The one small litter bin at that end of the street is often 
overflowing and is way too small given the heavy footfall at that end.  I have lived in Walham 
Grove for 17 years and honestly believe that that end of the street has deteriorated a lot 
since those food shops came to the street.  I have never once seen a Papa John’s employee 
(nor any of their delivery drivers) go out onto the street and pick up litter - it isn’t only the 
pizza boxes, the area where the delivery drivers sit on their mopeds is strewn with litter and 
we often have pizza boxes and cups/cans/plastic bottles/dirty napkins on the pavement 
outside our house.  This is a residential neighbourhood, and we already have a huge traffic 
problem on our street - we do not need to encourage more cars and drunk people to come 
here late at night creating public nuisance. 
This is a densely populated part of Fulham, please help us to make it better for its residents 
rather than worse. 
 
Thank you. 
Kind regards, 
Catherine Mactaggart 

 
From: CATHERINE MACTAGGART  
Sent: 21 November 2022 13:34 
Subject: Meant to attach these photos to my email opposing applic 2022/01816/LAPR 

  

Page 44



 
 

 

Page 45



 
From: CATHERINE MACTAGGART  
Sent: 21 November 2022 18:44 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Re: Premises Licence Number: 2022/01816/LAPR Premises name: Papa 
Johns Pizza Premises address: 63 Walham Grove London SW6 1QR 
 
Thank you so much Elisha, my address is Walham Grove, London SW6 1QR and 
besides litter I want to emphasise the nuisance of attracting more people and cars to 
a residential street after midnight.  It is simply inconsiderate and not in keeping with 
the character of the street, this is not Piccadilly Circus - please help us to keep it that 
way. Thank you. 
  

Page 46



 

From: Rosie Meijer  
Sent: 21 November 2022 14:41 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Papa John’s 63 Walham Grove SW6 1QR APPLICATION 
2022/01816/LAPR to extend hours for ‘Late Night Refreshment’ ie hot food only (not 
alcohol) from the present allowed 23:30, to 02:00, Mon-Sun.  
 
Dear Sirs 
 
We write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
 
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
 
Walham Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner on 
similar roads off at the North End Road.  
Unfortunately. It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise, 
nuisance, ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. Extending 
hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road 
and beyond. 
 
In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s. 
In 2018 the offender was jailed for life.  Unfortunately, this area continues to suffer 
from a high amount of crime and disorder & ASB, mainly at night. Our local Lillie 
Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing Police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway.  
  
We understand that the Council’s efforts to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy. MacDonalds, close by, is open until midnight, 
which we think is already too late  for residents trying to sleep, especially children.  
  
It is unfortunate that the Applicant has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance, or 
ASB  mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask for hours to 02:00.  
 
 
We ask that you please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote 
the four licensing objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, 
noise nuisance, emissions nuisance, litter problems and anti-social behaviour in and 
around Walham Grove.  
 
Thank you. 
Rosie & Peter Meijer 
Walham Grove  
SW6 1QP 
 

Page 47



From: Catherine PIERRE  
Sent: 21 November 2022 19:25 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Papa John's Application 2022/01816/LAPR to extend hours - OBJECTION 
 
Dear all, 
 
I would like to officially object to the extension of business hours for Papa John's 63 
Walham Grove SW6 1QR Application (2022/01816/LAPR) to extend hours for 'late 
night refreshment' from current 11.30pm to 2am, Mon-Sun. 
 
The reasons for my objection are as follows: 

• Noise disturbance: Walham Grove is a fully residential with numerous 
bedrooms on the street side. As such, the constant noise from patrons 
(typically very loud at that time of the night) as well as delivery drivers (with no 
respect for their neighbours) will be disturbing our sleep including those of my 
children, and this every single day, including school nights. This goes against 
your objective to prevent Public nuisance as well as prevent children 
from arm. 

•  
• Anti-social behaviour/ safety: with extended hours into the early hours of 

the night, we are bound to make Walham Grove the centre of additional anti-
social behaviour, including our street operating as the new toilet for both 
patrons and drivers, loitering opportunities as such early hours, illicit side 
businesses such as drug selling, etc; this is already the case and extended 
hours can only contribute to this already unsustainable situation. This corner 
of the street was also subject to a murder a few years ago due to gangs/ drug 
conflicts, has this already been forgotten? This goes against your objective 
to prevent crime and disorder as well as promote public safety. 

•  
• Littering: with additional hours to sell take-away foods, comes the associated 

littering with discarded boxes outside the shop and within the street; this will 
contribute to additional pest nuisance (foxes and rats mainly) which is 
against your objective to prevent Public nuisance.  

In the event that I am unable to attend the hearing - I am working late to pay the 
council taxes...- please use this email as my formal objection to such an extension of 
business hours. 
 
Best regards, 
Catherine PIERRE 
Walham Grove 
 
From: Catherine PIERRE  
Sent: 13 January 2023 14:18 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Re: 2022/01816/LAPR Papa Johns Pizza, 63 Walham Grove London SW6 
1QR  
 

Page 48



I am still opposing to this change and my representation against this licence still 
remains. 
 
The below comments will not ensure drivers will abide by them and no enforcement 
will be guaranteed by the owner or council. 
 
As such this is not a viable solution. 
 
Regards  
Catherine  
 
  

Page 49



From: Donovan E  
Sent: 23 November 2022 12:11 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: 2022/01816 
 
Dear Sir/Madame 
 
I write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
   Walham Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner on 
similar roads off at the North End Road.  
   Unfortunately. It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise, 
nuisance, ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. Extending 
hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road 
and beyond. 
 In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s. 
In 2018 the offender was jailed for life.  Unfortunately, this area continues to suffer 
from a high amount of crime and disorder & ASB, mainly at night. Our local Lillie 
Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing Police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway.  
 We understand that the Council’s efforts to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy.  
MacDonalds, close by, is open until midnight, which we think is already too late  for 
residents trying to sleep, especially children.  
 It is unfortunate that the Applicant has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance, or 
ASB  mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask for hours to 02:00.  
 Please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote the four licensing 
objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, noise nuisance, 
emissions nuisance, and anti-social behaviour in and around Walham Grove. 
 
Donovan Elmes 
Walham Grove  
  

Page 50



From: Christiaan Buysse  
Sent: 02 December 2022 16:13 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: application 2022/1816/LAPR 
 
Concerns: Application 2022/1816/LAPR - Papa John's 63 Walham Grove SW6 1QR: to extend hours 
for "light night refreshment" ie hotfood from 23.30 to 02.00 
 
Dear Sir, 
Madam, 
 
We write you as freeholders of Walham Gove, where we have lived for 17 years, to strongly 
oppose this application. The street deserves its status as a conservation area because of the 
facades, the plane trees, the front gardens etc. 
Unfortunately; things have changed since 2006 , starting with the opening of the pizza shop on the 
corner with Northend Road followed by the Jerky Chicken (JK Kitchen) next to Papa John's and 
Cafe Olé across. Papa John's delivery services repair and test their bikes causing noise and 
nuisance day and night.. There is urinating against railings and in front gardens (We have the first 
front garden and plane tree coming from Northend Road !!!) Many of the delivery guys are a real 
nuisance as they are often on their speaker phone, yelling etc. 
 
Most shocking is that this cheap food outlet and its cusomers do not care about the environment.. 
Papa John's has little indoor-seating, customers eat in their car (radio on!) and alhough there is a 
bin on the corner of Walham Grove, food rests and pizza cartons are left in the street. A street 
sweeper told us having seen mice around Papa John's many bins along their Walham Grove facade 
that remain there for days. 
 
Nightly hours attract all sorts of people and I can testify that Walham Grove has become a drug 
street. 
I had a drug dealer and his customer inside my front garden who menaced me with breaking in, 
torture and even death (sic) when I asked him to leave the premises. I emailed the police but got 
no reply. 
In 2016 there was a deadly shooting in front of the Jerky Kitchen, drug related? and there are 
regularly incidents (disorder, ASB) around Papa John's.We regularly find big laughing gas cylinders 
on our doorstep left by gangs of youngsters gathering there late at night/early in the morning. We 
are obliged to lock the front garden gate from Thursday night till Monday morning as we fear for 
our safety (we are 70+). 
In the light of the above comment, we therefore object the application, as it constitutes an 
unneighbourly demand to extend nightly opening hours and respectfully request the Council that 
it be refused. 
 
Yours faithfully 
Christiaan BUYSSE, Godelieve CARCHON 

Walham Grove 
  

Page 51



From: John Skoulding  
Sent: 02 December 2022 10:41 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: Papa Johns: APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR - objection 
 
Papa John’s 63 Walham Grove SW6 1QR APPLICATION 2022/01816/LAPR to 
extend hours for ‘Late Night Refreshment’ - hot food only (not alcohol)  
from the present allowed 23:30, to 02:00, Mon-Sun.  
  
Dear Chair, 
  
I am, and have been for 20 years, a resident of Tournay Road in Fulham (address 
given below).  The purpose of this email to you is to, in the clearest terms, object to 
this application - 2022/01816/LAPR.  
  
Background 
  
Walham Grove is a fully residential road except for a couple of shops at the junction 
with the North End Road. It is typical of the vast majority of roads in this heavily and 
predominantly residential area.  Tournay Road, where I live, is the same.  This 
means that within metres of these premises are houses, flats, apartments, homes to 
people of all ages, backgrounds, and families.  Tournay Road is a two-minute walk 
from the Applicant's site. 
  
Public Nuisance 
  
The last three years have seen the rise of the delivery economy and with-it huge 
numbers of delivery/dispatch motorbike rider on the streets.  In this area of Fulham 
this has led to large numbers of such riders congregating on our roads from very 
early in the morning to late at night. This development has brought with is an 
immense number of problems principally 7 days a week noise and nuisance and a 
range of anti-social behaviour. Just yesterday I witnessed one such rider, dismount 
his motorbike,  urinate next to an old phone box on Tournay Road before walking to 
Greggs to collect a delivery.  We have had problems because they ride their bikes on 
the pavements, litter constantly after they have eaten and before jumping to take the 
next job (they have not time to find a bin), and because the ethnic minorities that 
typically account for the majority of this segment of the workforce do not always see 
eye to eye and scuffles and fights have all been witnessed by me and my children in 
the last 12 months.   As you will appreciate the roads that we are talking about are 
double parked.  Residents have had their cars scratched and dented by dispatch 
riders taking risks and playing a game of speed roulette as the refuse to stop and 
refuse to drive with due care and attention through small gaps and spaces. 
  
However, the undoubted core problem is noise.  Leaving aside that the dispatch 
riders rarely comply with the 20 mph speed limit (which is never enforced by speed 
camaras), ignoring that none (literally zero) are electric bikes and very few are 
bicycles, ignoring the desperate rush that the riders are in as they are rewarded for 
delivering in under 20 minutes and earn bonuses by fulfilling deliveries in the 
quickest possible time, the real issue is that after our children have gone to bed, 
when the elderly are trying to rest and after we adults  have gone to bed, roads like 

Page 52



Walham Grove and Tournay Road are the regular runs for these dispatch 
riders.  Time and time again, night after night they wake up residents, school age 
children, the elderly and those other adults who have returned home after a (often 
long) day at work expecting the simple right to rest and sleep. Children are a 
particular issue and concern here especially as regards the impact on school and 
educational attainment..  They need a simple but guaranteed amount of sleep if they 
are perform at school and lead a healthy lifestyle.  Broken sleep deprives them of the 
deep unbroken sleep that their brains and bodies need to develop.  The science to 
support this is, I understand, undeniable. 
  
Please also note that we have submitted noise and nuisance complaint earlier this 
year regarding Papa Johns  (reference LBHF FS-Case 457 456 110 (9/10/22).  This 
related to the fact that they already trade beyond their permitted hours and wilfully 
disregard the rules and the position of residents.  There is evidence that online they 
already breach the existing licence and I have witnessed the sale of hot food after 
23:30 without a licence.  Sadly, I have witnessed the reality that the Applicant cannot 
encourage nor enforce best practice where they use third party delivery companies 
to fulfil their orders i.e. use of electric motorbikes.   Nor is there any space inside (it is 
very restricted)  the premises for delivery drivers who wait to collect 
orders.  Preventing noise and nuisance in these circumstances is just not 
feasible.  This is also relevant to issues of Public Disorder. 
  
Crime and Public Disorder 
  
The simple truth is that extended hours will create, and add to, unacceptable 
disturbance, noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road and 
beyond.  I have not focussed on crime, but I have witnessed that where the riders 
meet and congregate there is also an attendant following of sellers and young 
people, groups form, and loud and aggressive language can be heard whilst we lie 
awake in our beds.  I have seen drivers open the very packages that they are 
entrusted to deliver, and which punters have paid for, to take out and eat the 
contents before that drive off.  This week, when road works are being caried on the 
road (so the road is closed) I have witnessed numerous dispatch riders drive 
dangerously at speed along the pavements – very few/virtually none dismount and 
walk their motorbikes.  The facts speak for themselves: 
  

1 In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s;  In 
2018 the offender was jailed for life; 

2 Our part (the North End Road) of Fulham continues to suffer from a high amount of 
crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour, mainly at night. The local Ward police 
attest to this, and Licensing Police continue to confirm this in recent applications on and 
around North End Road and Fulham Broadway. 

  
Against this backdrop as residents, we welcome and embrace LBHF's efforts to 
revive the North End Road market including plans for daytime and some early 
evening events (we have a Christmas market taking place in the next 
fortnight).  Critically there is no plan by LBHF to even begin to establish a night-time 
economy in this area.  Why would they as it is dominated by a residential area? This 
means that the majority of those who live here are entitled to expect actions 
consistent with there being no development of a late night and early hours economy. 

Page 53



Extended hours run counter to and fly in the face of this policy, the safety of 
residents and the quiet enjoyment of a fundamentally residential area. 
  
MacDonalds (that has a record of engaging "bouncer-like" staff at peak night times 
because of the numerous disturbances that have occurred outside their site).  They 
stay open until midnight, which we think is already too late for residents trying to 
sleep, especially children.  The attendant crime issues are a continual worry for all of 
us in a fundamentally residential area. 
  
The Applicant has not outlined any specific or general noise, nuisance, or ASB 
mitigation measures in the application.  What will they take responsibility for? They 
simply ask for hours to 02:00 without any consideration of or regard to the impact of 
those who live "on the doorstep". This cannot be right in a residential area and I 
submit that a balanced and proportionate view must be taken by them with regard to 
all relevant interest. 
  
Please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote the four licensing 
objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, noise nuisance, 
emissions nuisance, and anti-social behaviour in and around Walham Grove. I rely 
heavily on the precedent set by the decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee on 27 
July 2022 in the case of Selekt Chicken at 349 North End Road.  The issues raised 
above remain the case as regards any extension past 23:30 (it makes no difference 
if the time runs to 02:00 or even 01:00).  Our real concerns remain.  This generates 
grave concerns about the Applicants integrity and honesty. 
  
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
fellow residents Charlotte Dexter or Lucilla Royden or her representative as the case 
may be. 
  
Kind regards 
  
John Skoulding 
Tournay Road  
 
  

Page 54



From: Charlotte Dexter  
Sent: 02 December 2022 20:05 
To: Licensing HF:  
Subject: 2022/01816/LAPR Papa Johns 63 Walham Grove TONIGHT deadline 2 
Dec 
 
Dear Licensing 
We are writing to object to the request for hours to be extended for Late Night 
Refreshment (not alcohol) from the existing 23:30 to 02:00 on the grounds of crime, 
ASB, noise nuisance, emissions nuisance, vehicle collision nuisance, and public 
safety.  
This area of North End Road has a lot of Crime and ASB, especially as the night and 
early morning draw on.  
 
It has been confirmed to us that it is up to ‘other interested parties’ to use the hearing 
process as the ONLY valid means to alert the LBHF Licensing Committee, through 
its Sub-Committee convened for a specific hearing, of reasonable and proportionate 
concerns that affect 100 percent Fulham residential roads in the immediate area as 
well as within an approximate 10-20-minute motorbike delivery ride of the Premises 
at 63 Walham Grove/at Vanston Place and North End Road.   
1) Existing 4 conditions no longer robust enough 
 
The existing licence has four very minimal conditions, as below. These are no longer 
robust enough for hours after 23:30.  
 
Unfortunately, the Applicant has not addressed the severe crime problems around 
this area, and right at their front door, especially the undercurrent of drug deals and 
resale of shoplifted items directly on the pavement.  
The Applicant has simply applied for longer hours; valid,  but very concerning to 
neighbours all around that the Applicant has suggested nothing from its side.  
 
Existing conditions: 
1. All staff shall be trained to understand the four licensing objectives. 
 
2. Notices shall be displayed requesting customers to leave the premises quietly. 
 
3. Regular litter patrols shall take place around the external area of the premises. 
 
4. CCTV systems shall be in operation at the premises. 
 
We have been in conversation with Responsible Authorities asking them to suggest 
more robust conditions, were the hours to be extended. 
 
For that matter, even at the existing closing time of 23:30 more robust conditions re 
cctv are needed to monitor actual closing times (we hear from neighbours and police 
that there are known breaches of this closing time), as well as to help police 
investigations in the area as this very corner location sits at three roads intersecting 
the borders of Fulham Broadway. Could the Sub-Committee pls consider this and 
itself suggest more robust Conditions?   
 
2) Area suffers much crime, ASB 

Page 55



 
The police continue to acknowledge in recent and ongoing Applications for nearby 
premises on North End Road as well as Fulham Road that this area suffers from 
much crime and ASB especially towards the hours of midnight and beyond. We ask 
the Sun-Committee to take this into account.  
 
3) Closing doors to a takeaway from 23:00? 
 
I would remind the Committee that Domino’s Pizza not far away at the intersection of 
North End Road with Fulham Road voluntarily closes its doors to takeaway at 23:00 
due to the dangers, ASB and crime they have experienced of drunk people being 
overly aggressive inside, threatening staff, not paying, physical fights ensuing etc. 
Would the Applicant consider similar? 
 
4) 
Noise nuisance, Emissions nuisance, 
Vehicle collision nuisance 
 
These are escalating problems that are growing by the day, and night. Very 
specifically to the road named Walham Grove, delivery motorbikes use it as a 
convenient rat run, zooming at great speed. Those needing to go more in the 
opposite direction zoom down Tournay Road at lightning speed. The later the hour, 
the clearer the roads are of moving traffic (and pavement is void but for a few 
residents returning home or walking dogs ) and so, the faster and noisier they zoom 
to their delivery address further beyond Tournay Road. 
 
Vehicle collision nuisance: 
This is a new-found problem, never anticipated by the 2003 Licensing Act as delivery 
motorbikes have fun banging car mirrors shut as they zoom along, or clipp ng sides 
of cars etc. Their creativity is endless.  
 
The Walham Grove as well as Tournay Road residents will be explaining in detail 
and Env noise/nuisance will be commenting.  
 
I reserve my right to comment further as information is being gathered for a possible 
hearing on this Application. 
 
Charlotte Dexter Murray  
Barclay Road Neighbourhood Watch  
Barclay Rd  
 
  

Page 56



From: Harry Spencer-Smith  
Sent: 01 December 2022 16:58 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Application 2022/01816 Papa Johns 63 Walham Grove  
  
I am writing to object to the extension of the trading hours of this establishment to 2 am on the 
grounds of public nuisance. It is not located in Fulham Broadway centre where most late night 
activity is concentrated. There are fears of late night noise disturbing residents and the quantity of 
pizza boxes etc which will be discarded in Walham Grove. 
  
I am concerned about an increase in late night antisocial behaviour such as cars being parked with 
windows open in the summer months playing music up to 2 am and beyond while Pizzas are eaten. 
Although alcohol will not be sold there it could be brought in cars and increases the chance of crime 
and antisocial behaviour. People congregating outside late at night will not increase a sense of 
personal safety for those lone women walking home late at night. 
  
I urge you to reject this application. 
  
Yours 
  
Harry Spencer-Smith 
Walham grove 

 
  

Page 57



From: Rosie Meijer  
Sent: 28 November 2022 12:06 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Objection to Papa John’s 63 Walham Grove SW6 1QR APPLICATION 
2022/01816/LAPR  
 
The attached is sent this on behalf on Mrs Tishy Nugee of Walham Grove: 
 
Dear Sirs 
 
I write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR.  
 
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing Sub-Committee to consider this 
Application, and I am unable to attend, please note that I yield my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative.  
 
Walham Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner on 
similar roads off at the North End Road.  
Unfortunately. It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise, 
nuisance, ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. Extending 
hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti-social behaviour, and crime in our road 
and beyond. 
 
In 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa John’s. 
In 2018 the offender was jailed for life.  Unfortunately, this area continues to suffer 
from a high amount of crime and disorder & ASB, mainly at night. Our local Lillie 
Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing Police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway.  
  
We understand that the Council’s efforts to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy. MacDonalds, close by, is open until midnight, 
which we think is already too late  for residents trying to sleep, especially children.  
  
It is unfortunate that the Applicant has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance, or 
ASB  mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask for hours to 02:00.  
 
We ask that you please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote 
the four licensing objectives, especially considering the already high levels of crime, 
noise nuisance, emissions nuisance, litter problems and anti-social behaviour in and 
around Walham Grove.  
 
 
Yours Sincerely,  
 
Miss P Nugee 
Walham Grove 
 
  

Page 58



From: Roberta Messina  
Sent: 01 December 2022 10:05 
To: Licensing HF 
Subject: Papa John’s 63 WHALAM GROVE SW6 1QR APPLICATION 2022/01816 
 
Dear Sirs,  
I write to oppose this application 2022/01816/LAPR. 
If a hearing is held for the LBHF Licensing SUB-Committee to consider this 
application , and I unable to attend , please note that I yield  my five minutes to my 
neighbour Lucilla Royden or her representative. 
WHALAM Grove is a fully residential road, bar the typical few shops at the corner or 
similar roads off at the North End Road, 
Unfortunately, It has become a major rat run for delivery services causing noise , 
nuisance , ASB of drivers using our road/pavement/railings as a toilet. 
Extending hours will add to the noise, nuisance, anti social behaviour, and crime  in 
out road and beyond. 
In the 2016 we had a deadly shooting outside JK Kitchen, just down from Papa 
John’s. In the 2018 the offender was jailed for life. Unfortunately this area continues 
to suffer from a high amount of crime and disorder 6 ASB , mainly at night. Our local 
Lillie Ward police attest to this at our quarto meetings with them and Licensing police 
continue to confirm this in recent applications on and around North End Road and 
Fulham Broadway. 
We understand that the Council’s effort to revive North End Road market include 
plans for daytime and some early evening events, but not for the development of a 
late night and early hours economy. 
MacDonalds, close by , is open until midnight, which we think is already too late for 
residences trying to sleep especially children . 
It is unfortunate that the application has not outlined any specific noise, nuisance , or 
ASB mitigation measures in the application. They simply ask fir hours to 02:00 
Please reject this application on the grounds of inability to promote the four licensing 
objectives, especially considering the already high level of crime , noise, nuisance , 
and anti social behaviour in and around Walham Grove . 
 
Roberta Messina  
Guglielmo Aloi  
Walham Grove, SW6 1QP 
 

Page 59


	Agenda
	3 Papa Johns Pizza, 63 Walham Grove, London SW6 1QR.
	APPENDIX 1a Current Licence
	APPENDIX 1B Current Plan Papa Johns
	APPENDIX 2A Application Papa Johns
	APPENDIX 3 Agreement with the Police
	APPENDIX 4A Map Papa Johns
	APPENDIX 4B Neighbouring Premises
	APPENDIX 5 Representations




